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What is significant?

In December 1800, Lieutenant James Grant on board the Lady Nelson sighted a wide bay which he named
Portland Bay after a Secretary of State, the Duke of Portland. The bay had an abundance of seals and whales
and by the early 1830s, sealers and whalers had established a whaling station and trading port on the bay. As the
richness of the pastoral hinterland became apparent, other settlers, led by the pioneering Henty brothers, took up
land in the area. It became apparent that the combination of fine grazing land, the substantial numbers of whales
and seals and a good sheltered harbour made the location an outstanding prospect for a permanent township.
On the favourable advice of Foster Fyans, the Police Magistrate for Geelong, the government commenced the
set out of a new township in 1840.

The Henty family was well established at Portland by the time of Fyans's report and after a long battle, the Henty
family reached an agreement with the government with regard to their right to land. By 1849, the Henty family
owned the whole of Block 4 in the township. After suffering some economic difficulties in the 1840s, the pastoral
and commercial pursuits of the family recovered, and both Francis and Edward Henty decided to build new
homes in Portland. In 1855, Edward Henty began construction of Burswood on his allotment at the south side of
the town bridge. The design is attributed to John Barrow who was referred to in an article in the Portland
Guardian on 2 August 1855 as 'lately Government engineer' at the time the plans for the house were seen in his
office at Portland. Barrow came to Portland on his appointment as Assistant Engineer to the Clerk of Works in
March 1853 and remained in this position until his services were dispensed with in May 1855. Barrow's obituary
states that he was appointed as engineer to the Portland Roads District in 1856 and remained in the position until
1867 when he resigned and moved to Mt Gambier. His obituary indicates that Barrow worked primarily as an
engineer and no mention is made of any involvement in architectural works. The Portland Guardian article also
reported that the laying out of the extensive grounds had been entrusted to the ‘talented horticulturalist’, Mr
Barsby. Edward Barshy, a local seedsman and florist, was probably assisted by the gardener William Poland who
had travelled to Australia with the Henty family and stayed as Edward Henty?s gardener for about the next thirty
years.

Edward Henty was a member of the Legislative Assembly from 1856 to 1861 and as a result spent extended
periods away from Burswood, the house serving mainly as a home for Mrs Henty, and her mother and sister.
Henty had also been elected as first Chairman of the Board for the Portland Roads District in 1856 and an active
member of the Western Victorian Separation League which sought the formation of a separate colony. Henty
maintained an extravagant life style at Burwood and the house was the centre of visits as varied as groups of
school children to the Governor of the colony. In about 1873, Edward Henty left Portland and took up residence in
his newly-built mansion Offington on his property in St Kilda Rd where he lived until his death in 1878. Henty's
wife remained at Burswood until her death in 1881. After her death, Burswood was held by the Henty estate for
about the next six years.



In 1884 a prominent Portland businessman and former Mayor of the Borough of Portland James Trangmar
purchased the property. In 1888, Trangmar built a lodge at the entrance gates south of the drive. In 1905,
Burswood was purchased by Ballarat businessman James Long. Long, who was mayor in 1905-07 and 1908-09,
reputedly entertained notable guests at his home including the Governor-General Lord Northcote. The Long
family sold the house in about 1916. Grazier Ernest Balliere, who owned Burswood from 1920 until 1934, initially
used the house for holidays before retiring there. The house and garden may have suffered neglect in the latter
years of Balliere?s ownership and the property proved difficult to sell. Maurice Hamer, an Adelaide broker, bought
the property in 1936 and retained ownership possibly until 1941. Hamer carried out extensive works to the house,
developed the garden while demolishing the lodge and other outbuildings. Further changes and improvements to
the house and garden were made by the next longer-term owners of the property William and Zenda Lewis during
their ownership from 1947 to 1980. The property passed through the hands of a number of owners before being
purchased by Kit and Stephanie Olver in 1987 who undertook a restoration program. The house has been used
as a luxurious bed and breakfast in recent times.

Burswood has undergone restoration in recent years and retains much of its original form and detail. The form
and detail of the existing enclosed verandah may not be original to the house but was certainly in place in the
ownership of the Henty family in the 1860s. An ornate conservatory which originally stood on the west side of the
house had been removed possibly as early as 1871 but certainly during the period of the Long family ownership
of the property [1905-c1916].

Burswood is a single storey residence with a central block of fine axed basalt ashlar and corrugated iron hipped
roof. French doors open from the house on to a timber-framed enclosed glazed verandah which runs across the
front of the house. The flanking brick and stone service wings form an enclosed rear courtyard. A brick stable
building of possibly later date remains at the rear of the site.

How is it significant?
Burswood is of architectural, historical and aesthetic significance to the State of Victoria.

Why is it significant?

Burswood is of architectural significance as an exceptional example in Victoria of a house in the Australian
regency style. It is notable for its grand scale, its fine axed basalt ashlar elevation and the impressive entablature
and paired engaged columns flanking the cental entrance doorway. The design is one of few attributed to
Portland engineer and architect John Barrow who appears to have worked primarily as an engineer and
supervisor.

Burswood is of historical significance for its association with its original owner Edward Henty, a member of one of
Australia's most remarkable colonial families and a founder of Portland. Burswood is one of the oldest gentleman
pastoralist?s houses in western Victoria and is testimony to Edward Henty's success as an early colonist. The
house was an important element in the early social life of Portland and the Western District during both the Henty
and Long ownerships and is significant as a reminder of the wealth and lifestyles of the wealthy Victorian
pastoralists of the nineteenth century.

Burswood is of aesthetic significance for its garden which is one of the earliest domestic gardens in Victoria which
conforms to its original gardenesque pattern. The use of varied plant species, such as Cupressus, Coprosma,
box and rosemary, for the formation of hedges and windbreaks in a gardenesque manner at different heights to
create individual compartments is a unique feature of the garden.

[Online Data Upgrade Project 2005]

Permit Exemptions

General Exemptions:

General exemptions apply to all places and objects included in the Victorian Heritage Register (VHR). General
exemptions have been designed to allow everyday activities, maintenance and changes to your property, which
don’t harm its cultural heritage significance, to proceed without the need to obtain approvals under the Heritage
Act 2017.

Places of worship: In some circumstances, you can alter a place of worship to accommodate religious practices



without a permit, but you must notify the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria before you start the works or
activities at least 20 business days before the works or activities are to commence.

Subdivision/consolidation: Permit exemptions exist for some subdivisions and consolidations. If the subdivision or
consolidation is in accordance with a planning permit granted under Part 4 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987 and the application for the planning permit was referred to the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria as a
determining referral authority, a permit is not required.

Specific exemptions may also apply to your registered place or object. If applicable, these are listed below.
Specific exemptions are tailored to the conservation and management needs of an individual registered place or
object and set out works and activities that are exempt from the requirements of a permit. Specific exemptions
prevail if they conflict with general exemptions.

Find out more about heritage permit exemptions here.

Specific Exemptions:

General Conditions: 1. All exempted alterations are to be planned and carried out in a manner which prevents
damage to the fabric of the registered place or object. General Conditions: 2. Should it become apparent during
further inspection or the carrying out of works that original or previously hidden or inaccessible details of the place
or object are revealed which relate to the significance of the place or object, then the exemption covering such
works shall cease and Heritage Victoria shall be notified as soon as possible. Note: All archaeological places
have the potential to contain significant sub-surface artefacts and other remains. In most cases it will be
necessary to obtain approval from the Executive Director, Heritage Victoria before the undertaking any works that
have a significant sub-surface component.

General Conditions: 3. If there is a conservation policy and planall works shall be in accordance with it. Note:A
Conservation Management Plan or a Heritage Action Plan provides guidance for the management of the heritage
values associated with the site. It may not be necessary to obtain a heritage permit for certain works specified in
the management plan.

General Conditions: 4. Nothing in this determination prevents the Executive Director from amending or rescinding
all or any of the permit exemptions. General Conditions: 5. Nothing in this determination exempts owners or their
agents from the responsibility to seek relevant planning or building permits from the responsible authorities where
applicable. Minor Works : Note: Any Minor Works that in the opinion of the Executive Director will not adversely
affect the heritage significance of the place may be exempt from the permit requirements of the Heritage Act. A
person proposing to undertake minor works must submit a proposal to the Executive Director. If the Executive
Director is satisfied that the proposed works will not adversely affect the heritage values of the site, the applicant
may be exempted from the requirement to obtain a heritage permit. If an applicant is uncertain whether a heritage
permit is required, it is recommended that the permits co-ordinator be contacted.

Construction dates 1855,
Architect/Designer Barton, John,
Heritage Act Categories Registered place,
Hermes Number 938
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https://application-hub.app.planning.vic.gov.au/hv/createForm/EDNotificationHV
https://www.heritage.vic.gov.au/permits-and-approvals/heritage-permit-exemptions

In December 1800, Lieutenant James Grant on board the Lady Nelson sighted a wide bay which he named
Portland Bay after a Secretary of State, the Duke of Portland. The bay had an abundance of seals and whales
and by the early 1830s, sealers and whalers had established a whaling station and trading port on the bay. As the
richness of the pastoral hinterland became apparent, other settlers, led by the pioneering Henty brothers, took up
land in the area. It became apparent that the combination of fine grazing land, the substantial numbers of whales
and seals and a good sheltered harbour made the location an outstanding prospect for a permanent township.
On the favourable advice of Foster Fyans, the Police Magistrate for Geelong, the government commenced the
set out of a new township in 1840.

The Henty family was well established at Portland by the time of Fyans’s report and after a long battle, the Henty
family reached an agreement with the government with regard to their right to land. By 1849, the Henty family
owned the whole of Block 4 in the township. After suffering some economic difficulties in the 1840s, the pastoral
and commercial pursuits of the family recovered, and both Francis and Edward Henty decided to build new
homes in Portland. In 1855, Edward Henty began construction of Burswood on his allotment at the south side of
the town bridge. The design is attributed to John Barrow who was referred to in an article in the Portland
Guardian on 2 August 1855 as ‘lately Government engineer’ at the time the plans for the house were seen in his
office at Portland. Barrow came to Portland on his appointment as Assistant Engineer to the Clerk of Works in
March 1853 and remained in this position until his services were dispensed with in May 1855. Barrow’s obituary
states that he was appointed as engineer to the Portland Roads District in 1856 and remained in the position until
1867 when he resigned and moved to Mt Gambier. His obituary indicates that Barrow worked primarily as an
engineer and no mention is made of any involvement in architectural works. The Portland Guardian article also
reported that the laying out of the extensive grounds had been entrusted to the ‘talented horticulturalist’, Mr
Barsby. Edward Barsby, a local seedsman and florist, was probably assisted by the gardener William Poland who
had travelled to Australia with the Henty family and stayed as Edward Henty’s gardener for about the next thirty
years.

Edward Henty was a member of the Legislative Assembly from 1856 to 1861 and as a result spent extended
periods away from Burswood, the house serving mainly as a home for Mrs Henty, and her mother and sister.
Henty had also been elected as first Chairman of the Board for the Portland Roads District in 1856 and an active
member of the Western Victorian Separation League which sought the formation of a separate colony. Henty
maintained an extravagant life style at Burwood and the house was the centre of visits as varied as groups of
school children to the Governor of the colony. In about 1873, Edward Henty left Portland and took up residence in
his newly-built mansion Offington on his property in St Kilda Rd where he lived until his death in 1878. Henty’s
wife remained at Burswood until her death in 1881. After her death, Burswood was held by the Henty estate for
about the next six years.

In 1884 a prominent Portland businessman and former Mayor of the Borough of Portland James Trangmar
purchased the property. In 1888, Trangmar built a lodge at the entrance gates south of the drive. In 1905,
Burswood was purchased by Ballarat businessman James Long. Long, who was mayor in 1905-07 and 1908-09,
reputedly entertained notable guests at his home including the Governor-General Lord Northcote. The Long
family sold the house in about 1916. Grazier Ernest Balliere, who owned Burswood from 1920 until 1934, initially
used the house for holidays before retiring there. The house and garden may have suffered neglect in the latter
years of Balliere’s ownership and the property proved difficult to sell. Maurice Hamer, an Adelaide broker, bought
the property in 1936 and retained ownership possibly until 1941. Hamer carried out extensive works to the house,
developed the garden while demolishing the lodge and other outbuildings. Further changes and improvements to
the house and garden were made by the next longer-term owners of the property William and Zenda Lewis during
their ownership from 1947 to 1980. The property passed through the hands of a number of owners before being
purchased by Kit and Stephanie Olver in 1987 who undertook a restoration program. The house has been used
as a luxurious bed and breakfast in recent times.

The draft statement of significance and the above history were produced as part of an Online Data Upgrade
Project 2005. Sources were as follows:

Francis Punch P/L, ‘Burswood’ Portland, Victoria. Conservation Analysis for the Historic Buildings Council
[Victoria] 1992

Francine Gilfedder & John Hawker, ‘Burswood’ Portland, Victoria. Conservation Analysis and Management Plan
1988

Public Works Department of Victoria staff cards held by Heritage Victoria.



Extent of Registration

Town of Portland. No. 240. Burswood, 15 Cape Nelson Road, Portland.
[Victoria Government Gazette No 100 Wednesday, October 9 1974 p.3649]

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check
the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes
Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/
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